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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK

ZOMBA RECORDING CORP., ARISTA
RECORDS, INC., ATLANTIC
RECORDING CORP., BMG MUSIC,
CAPITOL RECORDS, INC., ELEKTRA
ENTERTAINMENT GROUP INC.,
FONOVISA, INC,, INTERSCOPE
RECORDS, LAFACE RECORDS,
LONDON-SIRE RECORDS INC., LOUD
RECORDS LLC, MOTOWN RECORD
COMPANY, L.P., PRIORITY RECORDS
LLC, THE RCA RECORDS LABEL, a
unit of BMG Music, RHINO
ENTERTAINMENT CO., SONY DISCOS
INC., SONY MUSIC ENTERTAINMENT
INC., UMG RECORDINGS, INC,,
UNIVISION MUSIC LLC, VIRGIN
RECORDS AMERICA, INC., WARNER
BROS. RECORDS INC,, and WARNER
MUSIC LATINA INC ; and JERRY
LEIBER, individually and D/B/A JERRY
LEIBER MUSIC, MIKE STOLLER,
individually and D/B/A MIKE STOLLER
MUSIC, FAMOUS MUSIC CORP.,
ENSIGN MUSIC CORP., and BRUIN
MUSIC CO., on behalf of themselves and
all others similarly situated,

Plaintiffs,
\'2

AUDIOGALAXY, INC. and MICHAEL S.
MERHE],

Defendants.

NY1:860172.5 1

Civil Action No,

COMPLAINT FOR CONTRIBUTORY
AND VICARIOUS COPYRIGHT
INFRINGEMENT AND UNFAIR
COMPETITION AND
SONGWRITER/MUSIC PUBLISHER
PLAINTIFFS’ CLASS ACTION
COMPLAINT FOR COPYRIGHT
INFRINGEMENT



Plaintiffs, by and through their counsel, allege upon knowledge to themselves and upon
information and belief as to all other matters, as follows:

NATURE OF ACTION

1. This is a civil action for contributory and vicarious copyright
infringement and related state law claims on behalf of plaintiff Record Companies, and a
class action by plaintiffs Jerry Leiber individually and d/b/a Jerry Leiber Music, Mike
Stoller individually and d/b/a Mike Stoller Music, Famous Music Corporation, Ensign
Music Corporation, Bruin Music Company, on behalf of all music publishers represented
by The Harry Fox Agency, Inc. (“"HFA”) that own and/or control at least one copyrighted
musical composition that has been made available without their permission (“the Class™),
arising out of the willful conduct of Defendants Audiogalaxy, Inc. (“Audiogalaxy”) and

Michael S. Merhej (“Merhej”), an individual (collectively “Defendants”).

2. Like the now-enjoined music file-copying system and service run
by Napster, Defendants have built, maintain, and control an integrated computer system
and service, known as Audiogalaxy and accessible through a website,

www.audiogalaxy.com, that they knowingly, willfully and intentionally designed

specifically to facilitate and encourage millions of individual anonymous users to copy
and distribute infringing copies of copyrighted works by the millions, if not billions.

With functions such as the ability to download entire sound recording albums, cover
artwork, and software, as well as a peer-to-peer music file-copying function,
Audiogalaxy’s system and service is even mbre egregious than that of Napster, which
currently is subject to a preliminary injunction as a result of its contributory and vicarious

copyright infringement. See A & M Records, Inc., et al v. Napster, Inc., 284 F.3d 1091
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(9th Cir. 2002). Among the artists and songwriters whose works are being unlawfully
distributed through the Audiogalaxy system and service are: the Beatles, the Backstreet
Boys, Brandy, Tony Bennett, Boyz II Men, the Grateful Dead, Elton John, Shakira, Janet
Jackson, Billy Joel, Madonna, Whitney Houston, Bonnie Raitt, Metallica, Bob Dylan,
Toni Braxton, Pet Shop Boys, Wu-Tang Clan, Diana Ross, Ice Cube, Julio Iglesias,
David Bowie, B.B. King, Counting Crows, R E.M., Frank Sinatra, Plaintiffs Jerry Leiber
and Mike Stoller, Henry Mancini, Johnny Mercer, Paula Cole, Lalo Schiftin, and

numerous others,

3. A visit to Audiogalaxy’s website makes readily apparent that
Defendants’ system and service is simply Napster with the addition of consumer-friendly
features that make the reproduction and distribution of copyrighted content easier than
ever before. The works of all the most popular artists, including many songs yet to be
released to the public, are organized by Audiogalaxy in a library of piracy and placed at
the users’ fingertips. Thus, while feigning concern for protecting copyrights and
discussing with many of the plaintiffs ways to filter their creative content, Defendants
continue to this very day to make available all of the content plaintiffs have previously
identified as infringing. Indeed, Defendants’ filtering process is no more effective at

filtering music than a fishnet is at filtering water.

4. Defendants are well aware of the massive infringements occurring
daily by and through the Audiogalaxy system and service. Defendants initially created
their system in order to capitalize on the marketplace success that Napster achieved and

to supplant Napster as the preferred forum for the unlawful copying and distribution of

NY1:860172.5 3



[

copyrighted works. Defendants are regularly compared to Napster or hailed as the “next

Napster” in press accounts.

5. Defendants have the ability to control which works are available
on their system and service, including through the use of a variety of technologies.
Defendants also acknowledge the ability to remove users and to exclude certain content.
Instead of effectively employing such technologies or policies, however, Defendants have

chosen to build a business on the massive infringement of copyrighted works.

6. Defendants deliberately enable this infringement by providing
Audiogalaxy users with a fully integrated infrastructure and facilities — including a hub of
central computer servers to which users connect; a continuously updated database and
index of infringing sound recordings; information about the file size, popularity, and
download speed of files containing those recordings; proprietary software (“the
Satellite™) to facilitate the rapid and efficient identification, copying, and distribution of
those recordings; continuous support and back office administration; and other tools and
technology — all of which, by design, enable and encourage users of the Audiogalaxy
system and service to make their individual, previously private, collectigns of sound
recordings available for instantaneous distribution to and copying by countless other

Audiogalaxy users without authorization of the copyright owners.

7. In exchange for providing the site, facilities, and services through
which to infringe plaintiffs’ copyrighted works, Defendants — like Napster — seek to

cultivate an extensive user base that will attract investment dollars, advertisers, and
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business partners. Plaintiffs’ copyrighted sound recordings and musical compositions

serve as the product that attracts that user base.

8. Defendants have deliberately built a business on and seek to profit
from the daily, massive copyright infringement of plaintiffs’ works that Defendants
enable and encourage through the operation of the Audiogalaxy system and service.

With each passing day, Defendants facilitate the infringement of millions of sound
recordings and musical compositions throughout the United States and around the world.
Defendants’ conduct is causing and threatens to continue to cause severe and irreparable
harm to plaintiffs and the recording and music publishing industries generally. Among
the most pernicious effects of Defendants’ unlawful conduct is that they are teaching a
generation of consumers that artists and copyright owners have no right to compensation
for their work, and that sound recordings and musical compositions are and should be

free to anyone who can find them on the Internet.

9. For the foregoing reasons, plaintiffs seek damages and a permanent

injunction to prevent further infringement of plaintiffs’ copyrighted works.

PARTIES

Recording Company Plaintiffs

10.  Plaintiff Zomba Recording Corporation, is a corporation duly
organized and existing under the laws of the State of New York, with its principal place
of business in New York and in this District, and is duly qualified to transact business in

New York.
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11, Plaintiff Arista Records, Inc. is a corporation duly organized and
existing under the laws of the State of Delaware, with its principal place of business in

New York and in this District, and is duly qualified to transact business in New York.

12. Plaintiff Atlantic Recording Corporation is a corporation duly
organized and existing under the laws of the State of Delaware, with its principal place of
business in New York and in this District, and is duly qualified to transact business in

New York.

13, Plaintiff BMG Music is a New York general partnership that has,
in the past, also done business as BMG Entertainment, with its principal place of business

in New York and in this District, and is duly qualified to transact business in New York.

14. Plaintiff Capitol Records, Inc. is a corporation duly organized and
existing under the laws of the State of Delaware, and is duly qualified to transact business

in New York,

15, Plaintiff Elektra Entertainment Group Inc. is a corporation duly
drganized and existing under the laws of the State of Delaware, with its principal place of
business in New York and in this District, and is duly qualified to transact business in

New York.

16, Plaintiff Fonovisa, Inc. is a corporation duly organized and
existing under the laws of the State of California, with its principal place of business in

California, and is duly qualified to transact business in New York.
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17.  Plaintiff Interscope Records is a California general partnership,
with its principal place of business in California, and is duly qualified to transact business

in New York.

18.  Plaintiff LaFace Records is a joint venture between Arista
Ventures, Inc., a Delaware corporation with its principal place of business in New York
and in this District, and LaFace Records, Inc., a Georgia corporation, and is duly

qualified to transact business New York.

19.  Plaintiff London-Sire Records Inc. is a corporation duly organized
and existing under the laws of the State of Delaware, with its principal place of business

in New York and in this District, and is duly qualified to transact business in New York.

20.  Plaintiff Loud Records LLC is an entity duly organized and
existing under the laws of the State of Delaware, with its principal place of business in

New York and in this District, and is duly qualified to transact business in New York.

21. Plaintiff Motown Record Company, L.P., is a California limited
partnership with its principal place of business in New York and in this District, and is

duly qualified to transact business in New York.

22, Plamtiff Priority Records LLC is an entity duly organized and
existing under the laws of the State of California with its principal place of business in

California, and is duly qualified to transact business in New York.
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23.  Plaintiff The RCA Records Label is a unit of BMG Music, a New
York general partnership, with its principal place of business in New York and in this

District, and is duly qualified to transact business in New York.

24.  Plaintiff Rhino Entertainment Company is a corporation duly
organized and existing under the laws of the State of Delaware, with its principal place of

business in California, and is duly qualified to transact business in New York.

25.  Plaintiff Sony Discos Inc. is a corporation duly organized and
existing under the laws of the State of Florida, and is duly qualified to transact business

in New York.

26.  Plaintiff Sony Music Entertainment Inc. is a corporation duly
organized and existing under the laws of the State of Delaware, with its principal place of
business in New York and in this District, and is duly qualified to transact business in

New York.

27.  Plaintiff UMG Recordings, Inc. is a corporation duly organized
and existing under the laws of the State of Delaware, and is duly qualified to transact

business in New York,

28.  Plaintiff Univision Music LLC is en entity duly organized and
existing under the laws of the State of Delaware, with its principal place of business in

California, and is duly qualified to transact business in New York.
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29, Plaintiff Virgin Records America, Inc. is a corporation duly
organized and existing under the laws of the State of California, and is duly qualified to

transact business in New York.

30.  Plaintiff Warner Bros. Records Inc. is a corporation duly organized
and existing under the laws of the State of Delaware, with its principal place of business

in California, and is duly qualified to transact business in New York.

31, Plaintiff Warner Music Latina Inc. is a corporation duly organized
and existing under the laws of the State of Delaware, with its principal place of business

in Florida, and is duly qualified to transact business in New York.

32.  Plaintiffs Zomba Recording Corporation, Arista Records, Irfc.,
Atlantic Recording Corporation, BMG Music, Capitol Records, Inc., Elektra
Entertainment Group Inc., Fonovisa, Inc., Interscope Records, LaFace Records, London-
Sire Records Inc., Loud Records LLC, Motown Record Company, L.P., Priority Records
LLC, The RCA Records Label, Rhino Entertainment Co., Sony Discos Inc., Sony Music
Entertainment Inc., UMG Recordings, Inc., Univision Music LLC, Virgin Records
America, Inc., Warner Bros. Records Inc., and Warner Music Latina Inc. will be referred

to collectively herein as the “Record Company Plaintiffs.”

The Class of Music Publisher Plaintiffs

33.  Plaintiffs Jerry Leiber individually and d/b/a Jerry Leiber Music
and Mike Stoller individually and d/b/a Mike Stoller Music (“Leiber & Stoller”) are
citizens of California and are professional songwriters who are also engaged in the

business of music publishing whereby they license the recording, reproduction, and
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distribution of musical works for which they either own or control the copyrights. Leiber
& Stoller are composers of such famous songs as “Stand By Me,” “Kansas City,” “Poison
Ivy,” “Fools Fall In Love,” “Ruby Baby,” “Along Came Jones,” and “Spanish Harlem.”
Several of these songs were recently featured in the Broadway show “Smokey Joe’s

Café.”

34,  Plaintiff Famous Music Corporation (“Famous”) is a Delaware
corporation, with its principal place of business in California, and is actively engaged in
the business of music publishing whereby it licenses the recording, reproduction, and

distribution of musical works for which it either owns or controls the copyrights.

35.  Plaintiff Ensign Music Corporation is a Delaware corporation, with
its principal place of business in California, and is actively engaged in the business of
music publishing whereby it licenses the recording, reproduction, and distribution of

musical works for which it either owns or controls the copyrights.

36.  Plaintiff Bruin Music Company is a Delaware corporation, with its
principal place of business in California, and is actively engaged in the business of music
publishing whereby it licenses the recording, reproduction, and distribution of musical

works for which it either owns or controls the copyrights.

37. Plaintiffs Leiber & Stoller, Famous Music Corporation, Ensign
Music Corporation, and Bruin Music Company will be referred to collectively herein as

the “Songwriter/Music Publisher Plaintiffs.”
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Defendants

38.  Defendant Audiogalaxy, Inc. is a Texas corporation with its

principal place of business in Austin, Texas.

39.  Defendant Michael S. Merhej is an individual residing in the State
of Texas. Merhej owns, controls, and is the alter ego of Audiogalaxy, Inc. Merhej has

benefited and continues to benefit financially from the Audiogalaxy system and service.

40.  Each of the Defendants is and at all times was a party to the
unlawful activities complained of herein, and/or acted in concert or combination with the
other named Defendant and/or has aided and abetted such other Defendant and/or has
acted as an agent for the other Defendant with respect to the actions and matters

described in this Complaint.

41. At all times herein mentioned, each of the Defendants has engaged
in a conspiracy, common enterprise, and common course of conduct with the other
Defendant. The purpose of such conspiracy, common enterprise, and common course of
conduct has been, among other things, to serve the Defendants’ own economic benefit by
intentionally, purposefully, and wilifully contributing to and benefiting from the
infringement of plaintiffs’ copyrights, exclusive rights under copyright, and state
statutory and common law throughout the United States and the world. Each of the
Defendants knowingly and intentionally has committed acts in furtherance of the
conspiracy, common enterprise, and common course of conduct, and éach is liable for the

acts and conduct of the others.
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JURISDICTION AND VENUE

42. This is an action seeking damages and injunctive relief for
copyright infringement under the Copyright Law of the United States, 17 U.S.C. § 101 ef

seq., and for misappropriation and unfair competition under state law.

43.  This Court has jurisdiction of this action under 28 U.S.C. §§ 1331
and 1338(a) and (b), and pursuant to the supplemental jurisdiction provisions of 28

US.C. § 1367

44, This Court has personal jurisdiction over Defendants. Defendants
solicit, transact, and conduct business in the State of New York and in this District; have
committed tortious acts both within and outside New York causing injury in New York;
and are regularly doing or soliciting business or engaging in a persistent course of
conduct in this State and in this District. Defendants expect or reasonably should expect
their conduct to have consequences in New York, and derive substantial revenue from
interstate commerce. Among other things, Defendants have facilitated and encouraged
the infringement of plaintiffs’ copyrights in sound recordings and musical compositions
in New York. In addition, Defendants operate an interactive system and service that
encourages and allows New York residénts to download illegal copies of plaintiffs’
works. Defendants have caused harm to plaintiffs in New York, where many of the
plaintiffs reside, and where potential purchasers of plaintiffs’ works are thereby diverted
from legitimate transactions. Plaintiffs’ claims arise out of the conduct that gives rise to

personal jurisdiction over Defendants.
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45.  Venue is proper in this District pursuant to 28 U.S.C. §§ 1391(b)

and (c), and §1400(a).

FACTS COMMON TO ALL CLAIMS FOR RELIEF

Record Company Plaintiffs

46. The Record Company Plaintiffs are engaged in the business of
producing and manufacturing sound recordings containing performances of musical
compositions and distributing and selling those sound recordings in phonorecords (as
defined in 17 U.S.C. § 101, and including, without limitation, compact discs) and over
the Internet, and/or licensing those activities to others. The Record Company Plaintiffs

are among the leading producers of musical and sound recordings in the United States.

47. The Record Company Plaintiffs have invested and continue to
invest substantial sums of money, time, effort, and creative talent to discover and develop
recording artists, and to create, manufacture, advertise, promote, sell, and license sound

recordings embodying their performances. In order to create sound recordings, the
Record Company Plaintiffs make payments to, among others, their recording artists, other
musicians, producers, technicians, and other staff personnel, and various musicians’
unions. The Record Company Plaintiffs and their recording artists are compensated for
their creative efforts and monetary investments largely from the revenues attributable to
the sale of phonorecords to the public and from license fees from the reproduction,
distribution, digital performance, or other exploitation of sound recordings. Absent such
compensation, profits and motivation would be diverted away from recording artists and
the record companies that record, manufacture, promote, and distribute their works. The

pool of resources available for finding and promoting new artists would shrink, and the
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quality, integrity, and diversity of musical recordings would suffer. The ultimate result
would be to diminish the public’s access to a wide variety of high-quality musical

recordings.

48. The Record Company Plaintiffs are the copyright owners or
owners of exclusive rights under United States copyright with respect to certain
copyrighted sound recordings embodied in their phonorecords, including but not limited
to those listed on Exhibit A (the “Copyrighted Sound Recordings”). Each Record
Company Plaintiff has applied for and/or received Certificates of Copyright Registration
from the Register of Copyrights for its Copyrighted Sound Recordings. Each Record
Company Plaintiff has the exclusive rights to, inter alia, “reproduce the [Copyrighted
Sound Recordings] in copies or phonorecords™ and to “distribute copies [of the
Copyrighted Sound Recordings] in phonorecords . . . to the public.” Defendants have
made each of the sound recordings listed in Exhibit A, as well as other copyrighted sound
recordings owned by plaintiffs, available for unlawful and unauthorized copying and

distribution over the Internet,

49, Additionally, the Record Company Plaintiffs have entered into
various agreements by which they obtained the sole, exclusive, and complete right to
manufacture, distribute, and sell phonorecords embodying certain recorded musical
performances of popular recording artists that were initially “fixed” (recorded) before
February 15, 1972, and therefore are subject to protection under state statutory and
common law, including but not limited to those identified in Exhibit B (the “Pre-1972
Sound Recordings™). Defendants have made each of the sound recordings listed in

Exhibit B, as well as other legally protected pre-1972 sound recordings owned by the
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Record Company Plaintiffs, available for unlawful and unauthorized copying and

distribution over the Internet.

Songwriters and Music Publishers

50.  The Songwriter/Music Publisher Plaintiffs are professional
songwriters and music publishers. Songwriters earn their livelihood, in part, by licensing
their exclusive rights to make and distribute sound recordings embodying their musical
compositions in the form of CDs, cassette tapes, LPs, and digital downloads. Music
publishers are the caretakers of the songwriters’ musical compositions. Thus, for
example, a record label or Internet music service that wants to distribute a recording of
Leiber & Stoller’s “Jailhouse Rock” on CD, cassette tape, or as a digital download, must
first obtain a license from and pay royalties to Leiber & Stoller, the music publishers and

copyright owners.

51.  Like thousands of other music publishers, the Songwriter/Music
Publisher Plaintiffs have agency relationships with The Harry Fox Agency, Inc. (“HFA”).
HFA is an industry service organization representing over 27,000 music publisher-
principals that collectively own or control more than 2.5 millior} copyrighted musical
works. Established in 1927, HFA serves as agent on behalf of its publisher-principals in
licensing copyrighted musical compositions for reproduction and distribution as physical
phonorecords (CDs, cassette tapes, and phonograph records), and over the Internet as
digital phonorecord deliveries. HFA is a wholly owned subsidiary of the National Music
Publishers’ Association, Inc. (“NMPA”). Founded in 1917, NMPA is the principal trade
association of music publishers in the United States. By appointing fIFA as their

common licensing and collection agent, the Songwriter/Music Publisher Plaintiffs and
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other Class members have confirmed their interest in generating royalties by licensing

their copyrighted musical works.

52,  Plaintiffs Leiber & Stoller composed or co-composed the
following copyrighted musical compositions, and own and/or control the copyrights in
the musical compositions “Jailhouse Rock,” “Love Potion #9,” “Yakety Yak,” “Poison
Ivy,” “Stand By Me,” “Along Came Jones,” “Charlie Brown,” “F ools Fall In Love,”

“Ruby Baby,” “Smokey Joe’s Café,” “Treat Me Nice,” and “Spanish Harlem.”

53.  Plaintiff Famous Music Corporation owns and/or controls the
copyrights in the musical compositions “A Time For Us (Romeo and Juliet Love
Theme),” written and composed by Larry Kusik, Eddie Snyder, and Nino Rota; “Moon
River,” written and composed by Henry Mancini and Johnny Mercer; “Speak Softly Love
(a/k/a/ Theme from The Godfather),” by Larry Kusik and Nino Rota; “Up Where We
Belong,” by Jack Nitzsche, Buffy Sainte-Marie, and Will Jennings; “Wifey,” by R.L.
Hugger, Keir Gist and Eddie Berkeley, “Nobody’s Supposed To Be Here,” by Montell
Jordan and Anthony “Shep” Crawford; “Rock The Party (Off The Hook),” by Noah
Bernardo, Paul Sandoval, Mark Daniels and Marcos Curniel; “Lit Up,” by Joshua Todd,
Keith Nelson, Jonathan Brightman, and Devon Glenn; and “Get It On Tonight,” by
Montell Jordan, Joerg Evers, Juergen Korduletsch, Sergio Moore, Darren Benbow,

Antoine Wilson and Brian Palmer,

54.  Plaintiff Bruin Music Company owns and/or controls the copyright
in the musical composition “Mission Impossible — Theme,” written and composed by

Lalo Schiftin.
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55.  Plaintiff Ensign Music Corporation owns and/or controls the
copyright in the musical composition “I Hope You Dance,” written and composed by Tia
Sillers and Mark D. Sanders; “Call Me,” by Giorgio Moroder and Deborah Harry; “Can I
Get A...,” by Irving Lorenzo, Rob Mays, Shawn Carter and Jeffrey Atkins; “T Don’t
Want To Wait,” written and composed by Paula Cole; “One Sweet Day,” by Michael
McCary, Nathan Morris, Wanya Morris, Shawn Stockman, Mariah Carey and Walter
Afanasieff’, “The Boy Is Mine,” by Fred Jerkins 111, Rodney Jerkins, LaShawn Daniels,
Japhe Tejada and Brandy Norwood; “Holla Holla,” by Irving Lorenzo, Jeffrey Atkins and

Taiwan Green.

56.  Through the infringing Audiogalaxy system and service,
Defendants are infringing the copyrights in the musical compositions of the
Songwriter/Music Publisher Plaintiffs and the Class, including but not limited to, those

identified in Exhibit C (“the Copyrighted Musical Compositions”).

57.  For the remainder of this Complaint, the Record Company
Plaintiffs and the Songwriter/Music Publisher Plaintiffs will be referred to collectively as

“plaintiffs,” unless they are referred to separately.

The Internet and Music Piracy

58.  The Internet is a vast collection of interconnected computers and
computer networks, It allows hundreds of millions of people around the world to
communicate freely and easily with each other, and to exchange ideas and information,
including academic research, literary works, financial data, music, movies, graphics, and

an unending and ever-changing array of other data.
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59.  The Internet offers tremendous opportunities for the music
business as well as for everyone who loves music. Indeed, the Internet provides distinct
advantages for music because, unlike tangible products, it is possible not only to market
and sell music online, but also to deliver it to the consumer digitally and instantly over
the Internet. Record companies, including plaintiffs, technology companies, and Internet
companies alike are creating exciting businesses to permit the public to take advantage of

the opportunities that these new technologies make possible.

60.  Unfortunately, in addition to creating opportunities for new and
creative models for legitimate businesses, the Internet also has afforded opportunities for
the wide-scale piracy of sound recordings and musical compositions. The most notorious
example to date has been Napster, which is now subject to a federal court preliminary
injunctilon to cease its infringing conduct. Notwithstanding the obvious — and adjudicated
— unlawfulness of much of the conduct on the Napster system and service, Defendants are
deliberately striving to emulate and replace that system (while attempting to co-opt its
massive user base) with the Audiogalaxy system’s more advanced technology that they

created and control.

61.  Technology has been widely distributed that enables individuals to
copy a song from a commercially released CD onto the hard drive of their computers (a
process known as “ripping”) and then to compress this digitized file so that it is small
enough to be readily distributed over the Internet. Most Internet piracy of sound
recordings is accomplished using a compression technology. The best-known type of
compression technology is MP3, which stands for Motion Picture Expert Group 1, Audio

Layer 3. MP3 is an algorithm that reduces the size of a digital music file so that it more
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easily and quickly can be copied, transmitted, and downloaded over the Internet. Many
MP3s do not incorporate any security embodied in the music file to limit further copying
and distribution of the sound recording. Thus, once a sound recording has been
converted into an unsecured compressed format, it can be copied further and distributed

an unlimited number of times, without significant degradation in sound quality.

62. It is well known, and has been widely reported, that major record
companies, songwriters, and music publishers have generally not authorized their sound
recordings or musical compositions to be reproduced and distributed in unsecured

compression formats such as MP3.

The Infringing Audiogalaxy System and Service

63.  The Audiogalaxy system and service that Defendants have created
and which they control is an extensive system that anonymously connects Internet users
and encourages and enables them to pool their music files into a single database
containing miilions of such files to enable them easily to make unlawful copies of any
and as many recordings as they choose. Defendants intentionally provide their users with
anonymity so as to prevent the owners of the copyrights in those musical compositions

and sound recordings from learning the identities of the infringing users.

64.  Defendants also attempt to shield themselves and their users from
potential copyright infringement claims by maintaining “Acceptable Use Limitations” in
their User Agreement that speciously purport to forbid the posting and distribution of
copyrighted material when, in fact, such posting is the raison d'étre of the Audiogalaxy

system and service. Defendants provide Audiogalaxy users with the infrastructure,
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facilities, technological means, and ongoing support and services to accomplish these
infringements. Defendants are collectively involved in and enable this process from

beginning to end.

65. The Audiogalaxy system and service functions in a fashion very
similar to Napster’s. Using a standard Internet browser and Defendants’ proprietary
Satellite software, users connect their computers to Defendants’ hub of computer servers

by logging on to the website www.audiogalaxy.com. Once connected, Audiogalaxy

users can perform a search for artists, songs, or albums of interest. The music files of
users who have connected to the system and have made such files available for copying
are uploaded via the Satellite onto an Audiogalaxy file index server. The Audiogalaxy
server creates an index based on é collective directory of files available for transfer,

either presently or at some time in the past.

66. The Audiogalaxy system and service does more than simply tell
users what recordings are available and which users have them; it creates a connection to
each responsive music file so that it can be downloaded to the user who has selected that
music file for copying. All users need to do is select the file they want by clicking on the
link in the index provided by Defendants, and the file automatically downloads — i.e., is
copied and saved — to their individual computer hard drives. Users desiring a recording
do not have to do anything to contact the user offering the recording; the Audiogalaxy

Satellite facilitates the entire transaction.

67.  The Audiogalaxy system and service goes one step beyond the

Napster system in that it organizes its file index library by aggregating all files related to
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a particular artist or song into a single index. (See Exhibit D.) This index is maintained
on Audiogalaxy’s servers and is made available by Defendants to all users of the
Audiogalaxy system. Defendants’ staff monitor the file indexes to aggregate duplicate
file names. Defendants further gather metadata from each file that help them to identify
it and determine its size and download speed in order to create the single index. By
arranging the files available on the system and service according to the embedded

metadata, Defendants facilitate the illicit copying and distribution of copyrighted works.

68.  Defendants use the metadata that are gathered from each file to
create an index of artists who perform in similar musical genres. If a user searches for a
song by, for example, a blues artist, this index will generate a “Recommendation List” of
other blues artists whose work is similar to the requested artist or whom other users
performing searches under the blues genre have frequently selected. By creating these
Recommendation Lists and linking the works of different artists in this manner,
Defendants further facilitate the easy identification, copying, and distribution of

infringing files.

69.  Defendants continuously monitor thousands of users to keep track
of when they log on and off. As soon as a user logs on, that user’s files are inventoried
and added to the file index library. When a user logs off, his files do not disappear from
the file index; rather, they remain queued on the index so that when the user logs on
again, any of his files that were previously requested by other users can be transferred.
Furthermore, if a user’s attempt to download from another user‘ is int.errupted, the
Satellite’s Auto-Resume function will find an alternate user with the same song file and

complete the download. This Auto-Resume function indicates that Defendants’ client
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software engages in some unique file identification and does not just organize files

according to user-inputted, text-based filenames.

70.  Inaddition to facilitating the unauthorized copying and distribution
of plaintiffs’ copyrighted works in MP3 format, the Audiogalaxy system and service also
enables users to transfer music files via FTP, or File Transfer Protocol. The FTP file
transfer mechanism is a less-frequently used alternative to copying files peer-to-peer but
performs essentially the same function: allowing for the easy copying and distribution of

files containing plaintiffs’ copyrighted works.

71.  Each time a sound recording is downloaded over the Audiogalaxy
system and service, the Audiogalaxy user making the recording available engages in an
unauthorized distribution of that recording, and the user who downloads it makes an
unauthorized copy of it. That sound recording is then made available by the downloading
user for further viral distribution throughout the Audiogalaxy system and service. At any
given time, millions of files are available for download through the Audiogalaxy system.
The overwhelming majority of sound recordings and musical compositions that
Defendants make available on the Audiogalaxy system and service are being distributed

and copied in violation of the copyright law and other laws.

Defendants’ Knowledge of the Infringing Activity

72.  The works made available on the Audiogalaxy system and service
include many recently released recordings that are available for copying within days of
their release to the public and some even before their official release dates. Among the

recordings offered for illegal copying by Defendants’ system and service are those of
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some of the most popular recording artists on some of the most well known recording
labels, performing some of the most recognizable songs of the twentieth century. It is
well known that artists of this caliber have recording agreements that grant exclusive
rights to recording companies such as plaintiffs, and that these agreements limit the
manner in which their recordings can be copied and used. Defendants are consequently
aware that the reproduction and distribution of these works through the Audiogalaxy

system and service is an infringement of those rights.

73.  Defendants have ample knowledge of the infringements occurring
on the Audiogalaxy system and service. Indeed, Defendants created their system and
promote it specifically to facilitate and capitalize on its infringing use. News articles
refer to Audiogalaxy as “filling the void left by Napster” or as “taking Napster’s place,”
and the site frequently appears in lists and reviews of “the best free music websites.”

(See Exhibit E.)

74.  Furthermore, Defendants receive additional knowledge of
infringement on the system and service via the activities that occur on “bulletin boards”

hosted and maintained on Audiogalaxy.com at <www.audiogalaxy.com/bbs?>. Users

can post messages to the boards to exchange information about a variety of topics. In
addition to numerous references to the infringing conduct taking place on the
Audiogalaxy system and service, the bulletin boards frequently diécuss how users can
circumvent the paltry filtering system Defendants have instituted in order to pretend to
screen out copyrighted works. One such bulletin board dedicated to this topic is one of

Audiogalaxy’s “top ten” most frequented bulletin boards (see Exhibit F).
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75.  Finally, Defendants have been given repeated, express notice of
the infringing activity with which their system and service is replete since as early as
February 2001. At or about this time, the Record Company Plaintiffs, through the
Recording Industry Association of America (“RIAA”), contacted Defendants regarding
the presence of specific infringing works on the Audiogalaxy system and deﬁanded that
Defendants take steps to remove infringing sound recordings belonging to its member
record companies. Defendant Merhej claimed that Audiogalaxy intended to work with
RIAA and stated that Audiogalaxy would be “receptive to any reasonable proposal that
will meet the needs of RIAA’s members.” Defendants, however, refused to implement
an effective filtering method and instead chose a text-based filtering method, which
searches for key words, such as artist name or song title, that appear as entered by
individual users when they upload files to the Audiogalaxy Satellite. Because this
filtering method depends on user-generated file identification data, it is easily

circumvented and has proven to be ineffective.

76. As a result of RIAA’s demand, since early 2001 Defendants have
engaged in a series of half-hearted, ineffectual attempts to screen infringing copies of
works from the Audiogalaxy system. In an effort to assist and hasten the removal of
infringing files, RIAA even provided Defendants with a CD-RdM containing over
985,600 artist names and track titles owned or controlled by its member companies,
Nevertheless, Defendants refused to take meaningful action and instead have done
nothing more than pay lip service to plaintiffs’ concerns with such false promises as
“[w]e firmly believe that we must remove content owned by your member companies and

that is our goal.”
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Defendants’ Ability to Control the Infringing Activity

on the Audiogalaxy System and Service

77.  Defendants have the right, ability, and technological capability to
filter and remove plaintiffs’ copyrighted works from the Audiogalaxy system and service.
Defendants clearly state in their User Agreement that they reserve the right to review and
remove materials posted to the system. Moreover, Defendants are aware of how creative
users mis-name infringing files to circumvent the text-based filter. Rather than
implement an effective filter and comply with the law, they have chosen instead to keep
the system and service stocked with infringing works and to continue extracting benefits
from illegal copying and distribution. Indeed, the very sound recordings that RIAA
advised Defendants in early 2001 were infringing works are still available on the
Audiogalaxy system today. As the Ninth Circuit recently held when affirming the
injunction in 4 & M Records, Inc. v. Napster, Defendants have a duty to cease their
infringing activity and implement a truly effective filtering system once they have notice

that infringing works are being made available for unauthorized copying and distribution.

Defendants’ Financial Benefit From the Infringing Activity

78.  Defendants benefit financially from the unauthorized copying and
distribution of music occurring on the Audiogalaxy system and service in a number of
ways. First, Defendants offer an enhanced version of their services called Satellite Gold.
For a monthly fee, Satellite Gold users can download and use a version of the Satellite
software that provides a faster connection to the system, thereby enhancing the speed at
which users can illegally copy and distribute files. Second, Defendants receive fees and

revenue by selling space on the Audiogalaxy website to advertisers, who place banner
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and pop-up ads on the site. The amount of such fees and revenue is generally tied to the
number of users who frequent the site; the more users who visit, the more Defendants can
charge advertisers for space. Finally, Defendants receive revenue from the sale of CDs of
artists featured on the site who have voluntarily made their work available on the system
and service to promote themselves. All of the above financial benefit is derived directly

or indirectly from the infringing activity that Defendants facilitate and support.

Harm to Plaintiffs’ Market Caused By Defendants’ Infringement

79.  Unchecked Internet piracy of the type engaged in by Defendants
poses grave risks to the sale of sound recordings fixed in CDs and tapes and to the sale of
sound recordings on the Internet, as well as the development of a legitimate online
market for music. The Record Company Plaintiffs suffer tremendous levels of lost sales
of albums and singles. Additionally, Defendants’ wholesale infringement harms the
market for licensed recordings of Songwriter /Music Publisher Plaintiffs’ and Class
members’ copyrighted musical compositions. That market is the bread and butter of
songwriters and their music publishers. The market for plaintiffs’ works is severely
harmed when consumers are able to download for free over the Audiogalaxy system and
service the same sound recordings and musical compositions that plaintiffs are offering to
them for sale. Even more damaging is the lesson that systems such as Defendants’ teach
to consumers — namely, that artists do not deserve to be compensated for their creative
endeavors, and that creative works are free for the taking by anyone with an Internet

connection. Defendants’ piratical behavior must cease immediately.
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CLASS ACTION ALLEGATIONS

80.  The Songwriter/Music Publisher Plaintiffs bring this action as a
class action pursuant to Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 23(a), (b)(2) & (3) on behalf of

the Class (as defined above).

81.  The members of the Class are so numerous that joinder of all
members is impracticable. HFA represents more than 27,000 music publishers that own
or control more than 2.5 million copyrighted musical works. Hundreds of thousands of
Class members’ songs are being made available through Defendants’ system and service

at any given time.

82. The Songwriter/Music Publisher Plaintiffs’ claims are typical of
the claims of the Class because the copyrights owned or controlled by the
Songwriter/Music Publisher Plaintiffs and other Class members are being infringed in the
same way and are causing substantially the same injury and because Class members seek

the same relief as the Songwriter/Music Publisher Plaintiffs seek here.

83.  The Songwriter/Music Publisher Plaintiffs will adequately protect
the interests of the Class. The Songwriter/Music Publisher Plaintiffs are prominent
songwriters and music publishers with catalogs that include some of the most
recognizable musical works recorded in the twentieth century. The Songwriter/Music
Publisher Plaintiffs have retained counsel who are experienced and competent in class
action copyright infringement litigation. The Songwriter/Music Publisher Plaintiffs have

no interests that are in conflict with those of the Class.
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84. A class action is superior to other available methods for the fair

and efficient adjudication of this controversy.

85.  Because of the uniformity of Defendants’ practices, an award of

injunctive relief would be applicable to every member of the Class.

86.  Common questions of law and fact predominate over questions
that affect only individual members. Questions of law and fact common to the Class,

without limitation, include:

(2) the manner in which Defendants’ service makes copyrighted
musical works available for unauthorized distribution and copying;

(b) whether Defendants have knowledge that infringing activity is
taking place on their service;

(c) whether Defendants are capable of controlling the infringing
activity on their service;

(d)  whether Defendants derive a financial benefit from the infringing
activity taking place on their service; and

(e) whether Defendants’ conduct is willful.

87.  The Songwriter/Music Publisher Plaintiffs intend to request that
this Court direct to the members of the Class the best notice practicable under the

circumstances, pursuant to Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 23(c)(2).

NY1:860172.5 28



COUNT I

CONTRIBUTORY COPYRIGHT INFRINGMENT

[By Record Company Plaintifts and Songwriter/Music Publisher Plaintiffs,
Against All Defendants]

88.  Plaintiffs incorporate herein by this reference each and every

averment contained in paragraphs 1 through 87, inclusive.

89.  As described above, Defendants provide the site and facilities for
the tremendous amount of copyright infringement that takes place on and by virtue of the
Audiogalaxy system and service every day. An infringement occurs each time one of the
millions of Audiogalaxy users, without authorization of the copyright owner, uploads a
music file to the Audiogalaxy system’s centralized index, thus offering it for distribution,
and each time an Audiogalaxy user downloads another user’s music file from that
person’s computer into his or her own, resulting in an unauthorized copy. Each and
every one of these infringements is encouraged, made possible, and facilitated by

Defendants.

90.  Through their conduct Defendants have engaged and continue to
engage in the business of knowingly and systematically inducing, causing, and materially
contributing to the above-described unauthorized reproduction and/or distribution of
copies of the Copyrighted Sound Recordings, the Pre-1972 Sound Recordings, and the
Copyrighted Musical Compositions (the “Copyrighted Works”) and thus to the
infringement of plaintiffs’ and the Class members’ copyrights and exclusive rights under

copyright in the Copyrighted Works.
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91.  The infringement of each of the plaintiffs’ and the Class members’
rights in and to the Copyrighted Works constitutes a separate and distinct act of

infringement.

02. The foregoing acts of infringement by Defendants have been

willful, intentional, and purposeful, in disregard of and indifference to plaintiffs’ rights.

93.  Defendants’ conduct, as averred herein, constitutes contributory
infringement of plaintiffs’ and the Class members’ copyrights and exclusive rights under
copyright in violation of Sections 106, 115, and 501 of the Copyright Act, 17 U.S.C. §§

106, 115, and 501,

94, Asa direct and proximate result of the contributory infringements
by Defendants of plaintiffs’ and the Class members’ copyrights and exclusive rights
under copyright, plaintiffs are entitled to damages and Defendants’ profits pursuant to 17

U.S8.C. § 504(b) for each separate infringement.

95.  Alternatively, plaintiffs are entitled to the maximum statutory
damages, pursuant to 17 U.S.C. § 504(c), in the amount of $150,000 with respect to each
work infringed, or such other amounts as may be proper under 17 U.S.C. § 504(c).

Plaintiffs allege that such statutory damages shall exceed $100,000,000.

96. Plaintiffs and the Class members further are entitled to their

attorneys’ fees and full costs pursuant to 17 U.S.C. § 505.

97.  Defendants’ conduct is causing and, unless enjoined and restrained

by this Court, will continue to cause plaintiffs and the Class members great and
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irreparable injury that cannot fully be compensated or measured in money. Plaintiffs and
the Class members have no adequate remedy at law. Pursuant to 17 U.S.C. § 502, they
are entitled to a permanent injunction prohibiting further contributory infringements of

their copyrights by Defendants.

COUNT 11

VICARIOUS COPYRIGHT INFRINGEMENT

[By Record Company Plaintiffs and Songwriter/Music Publisher Plaintiffs,
Against All Defendants]

98.  Plaintiffs incorporate herein by this reference each and every

averment contained in Paragraphs 1 through 97, inclusive.

99. At all times relevant herein, Defendants had the right and ability to
police the Audiogalaxy system and service and to supervise and/or control the infringing
conduct of Audiogalaxy’s users by, without limitation, (i) preventing or terminating a
user’s access to the Audiogalaxy system’s computer servers; (ii) by refusing to index and
provide connections to infringing music files and to prevent copying and distribution of
those music files; and (iii) otherwise implementing an effective filtering mechanism.
Defendants have failed to so police any infringing activities and to exercise such
supervision and/or control. As a direct and proximate result of such failure, Audiogalaxy
users infringed plaintiffs’ and the Class members’ copyrights iq the Copyrighted Works,

as set forth above.

100. At all times relevant herein, Defendants derived substantial
financial benefit from infringements of plaintiffs’ and the Class members’ copyrights by

the users of the Audiogalaxy system and service. Virtually the entire value of the
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Audiogalaxy system is derived from the infringement of plaintiffs’ and the Class
members’ works in that the system’s value grows as the quantity and quality of available
mﬁsic increases. Plaintiffs’ and the Class members’ works serve as the principal
inducement for users to join the Audiogalaxy system and service. Defendants’ ability to
entice an ever-increasing number of users benefits Defendants by attracting potential

advertisers, business partners, and investors, and generating revenue.

101.  The foregoing acts of infringement by Defendants have been

willful, intentional, and purposeful, in disregard of and indifference to plaintiffs’ rights.

102. Defendants’ conduct constitutes vicarious infringement of
plaintiffs’ copyrights and exclusive rights under copyright, in violation of Sections 106,

115, and 501 of the Copyright Act, 17 U.S.C. §§ 106, 115, and 501.

103.  As a direct and proximate result of Defendants’ vicarious
infringement of plaintiffs’ and the Class members’ copyrights and exclusive rights under
copyright, plaintiffs and the Class members are entitled to damages and Defendants’

profits pursuant to 17 U.S.C. § 504(b) for each separate infringement.

104.  Alternatively, plaintiffs are entitled to the maximum statutory
damages in the amount of $150,000 with respect to each work infringed, or for such other
amounts as may be proper under 17 U.S.C. § 504(c). Plaintiffs allege that such statutory

damages shall exceed $100,000,000.

105.  Plaintiffs further are entitled to their attorneys’ fees and full costs

pursuant to 17 U.S.C. § 505.
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106. Defendants’ conduct is causing and, unless enjoined and restrained
by this Court, will continue to cause plaintiffs and the Class members great and
irreparable injury that cannot fully be compensated or measured in money. Plaintiffs and
the Class members have no adequate remedy at law. Pursuant to 17 U.S.C. § 502, they
are entitled to a permanent injunction prohibiting further vicarious infringements of their

copyrights by Defendants.

COUNT 111

STATUTORY AND COMMON LAW UNFAIR COMPETITION

[By Record Company Plaintiffs, Against All Defendants]
107.  Record Company Plaintiffs incorporate herein by this reference

each and every averment contained in paragraphs 1 through 106, inclusive.

108.  The foregoing acts and conduct of Defendants constitute an
appropriation and invasion of the property rights of Record Company Plaintiffs in and to
the Pre-1972 Sound Recordings, and constitute misappropriation and unfair competition

under state statutory and common law.

109.  As a direct and proximate result of Defendants’ conduct, Record
Company Plaintiffs are further entitled to recover all proceeds and other compensation
received or to be received by Defendants arising from infringements by users of the
Audiogalaxy system and service of the Pre-1972 Sound Recordings. Record Company
Plaintiffs request the Court to order the Defendants to render an accounting to ascertain

the amount of such profits and compensation.
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110.  As a direct and proximate result of Defendants’ misappropriation
and unfair competition, Record Company Plaintiffs have been damaged, and Defendants
have been unjustly enriched, in an amount that shall be proved at trial for which damages
and/or restitution and disgorgement is appropriate. Such damages and/or restitution and
disgorgement should include a declaration by this Court that each Defendant is a
constructive trustee for the benefit of Record Company Plaintiffs, and an order that each
Defendant convey to them all the gross receipts received or to be received that are

attributable to infringement of the Pre-1972 Sound Recordings.

111.  Through their conduct averred herein, Defendants are guilty of
oppression, fraud, and/or malice and Record Company Plaintiffs are, in addition to their
actual damages, by reason thereof, entitled to recover exemplary and punitive damages

against Defendants.

112.  Defendants’ conduct is causing and, unless enjoined and restrained
by this Court, will continue to cause Record Company Plaintiffs great and irreparable
injury that cannot be fully compensated or measured in money. Record Company
Plaintiffs have no adequate remedy at law. They are entitled to a permanent injunction

prohibiting further acts of misappropriation and unfair competition by Defendants.

WHEREFORE, the Record Company Plaintiffs, the Songwritér/Music
Publisher Plaintiffs, and other Class members pray for judgment against Defendants as

follows:
1. On Counts I and II, for damages in such amount as may be found

or established at trial; alternatively, for statutory damages in the amount of not less than
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$150,000 with respect to each copyrighted work infringed, or for such other amount ag
may be proper pursuant to 17 U.8.C. § 504(c) and damages in such amount as may be
established at trial.

2. On Count II1, for damages in such amount as may be found or
established at trial;

3. On Counts I through III, for a permanent injunction enjoining
Defendants and their respective agents, servants, employees, officers, attorneys,
successors, licensees, and assigns, and all persons acting in concert or participation with
each or any of them, from: (1) directly or indirectly infringing in any manner any of
plaintiffs’ copyrights (whether now in existence or hereafter created) in, including
without limitation, the Copyrighted Sound Recordings listed in Exhibit A; the exclusive
rights in the Pre-1972 Sound Recordings listed in Exhibit B; and the Copyrighted
Musical Compositions listed in Exhibit C; and (ii) from causing, contributing to,
enabling, facilitating, or participating in the infringement of any of plaintiffs’ and the
Class members’ respective copyrights, including, without limitation, the Copyrighted
Sound Recordings listed in Exhibit A, the exclusive rights in the Pre-1972 Sound
Recordings listed in Exhibit B; and the Copyrighted Musical Compositions listed in
Exhibit C.

4, On Count 111, for an accounting, the imposition of a constructive
trust, and damages according to proof.

5. On Count ITI, for punitive and exemplary damages in such amount
as may be awarded at trial.

6. For prejudgment interest according to law.
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proper.
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7.

8.

For plaintiffs’ attorneys’ fees, costs, and disbursements in this

For such other and further relief as the Court may deem just and

[CONTINUED ON FOLLOWING PAGE]
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Dated: May 24, 2002
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O’MELVENY & MYERS LLP (
By: E{Aﬁ(/ m /

Dale M. Cendali, Esq. (DC 2676)
Citigroup Center

153 East 53™ Street

New York, New York 10022

(212) 326-2000

Counsel for Record Company Plaintiffs
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I, Dale M. Cendali, hereby certify that on May 24, 2002, I caused a true and correct
copy of this COMPLAINT FOR CONTRIBUTORY AND VICARIOUS COPYRIGHT
INFRINGEMENT AND UNFAIR COMPETITION AND SONGWRITER/MUSIC
PUBLISHER PLAINTIFFS’ CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT FOR COPYRIGHT
INFRINGEMENT to be served upon the following by causing said documents to be sent via

overnight courier:

Audiogalaxy, Inc.

1135 West Sixth Street, Suite 120
Austin, Texas 78703-5309
Defendant

Mr. Michael S. Merhej

1135 West Sixth Street, Suite 120
Austin, Texas 78703-5309
Defendant

Dols MGl UL

Dale M. Cendali (DC 2676)
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Exhibit C — Copyrighted Musical Compositions

Named Plaintiff

Title of Musical Composition

Author(s)

Mike Stoller Music, Jerry

Jailhouse Rock

Jerry Leiber, Mike Stoller

Leiber Music

Mike Stoller Music, Jerry | Love Potion #9 Jerry Leiber, Mike Stoller
Leiber Music

Mike Stoller Music, Jerry Yakety Yak Jerry Leiber, Mike Stoller
Leiber Music

Mike Stoller Music, Jerry Poison Ivy Jerry Leiber, Mike Stoller
Leiber Music

Mike Stoller Music, Jerry | Stand By Me Jerry Leiber, Mike Stoller, Ben
Leiber Music E.King

Mike Stoller Music, Jerry | Along Came Jones Jerry Leiber, Mike Stoller
Leiber Music

Mike Stoller Music, Jerry Charlie Brown Jerry Leiber, Mike Stoller
Leiber Music

Mike Stoller Music, Jerry Fools Fall In Love Jerry Leiber, Mike Stoller
Leiber Music

Mike Stoller Music, Jerry | Ruby Baby Jerry Leiber, Mike Stoller

Leiber Music

Mike Stoller Music, Jerry

Smokey Joe’s Café

Jerry Leiber, Mike Stoller

Leiber Music

Mike Stoller Music, Jerry Treat Me Nice Jerry Leiber, Mike Stoller

Leiber Music

Jerry Leiber Music Spanish Harlem Jerry Leiber, Phil Spector

Famous Music Corp. Moon River Henry Mancini, Johnny
Mercer

Famous Music Corp. A Time For Us Larry Kusik, Eddie Snyder,
Nino Rota

Famous Music Corp. Speak Softly Love (a/k/a/ Larry Kusik, Nino Rota -

Theme from The Godfather)

Famous Music Corp. Up Where We Belong Jack Nitzsche, Buffy Sainte-
Marie, Will Jennings

Famous Music Corp. Wifey R.L. Hugger, Keir Gist, Eddie

Berkeley

Famous Music Corp.

Nobody’s Supposed to Be Here

Montell Jordan and Anthony
“Shep” Crawford

Famous Music Corp.

Rock The Party (Off The Hook)

Noah Bernardo, Paul

Doct: NY6: 229336 1
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Exhibit C — Copyrighted Musical Compositions

Sandoval, Mark Daniels,
Marcos Curiel

Famous Music Corp.

Lit Up

Joshua Todd, Keith Nelson,
Jonathan Brightman, Devon
Glenn

Famous Music Corp.

Get It On Tonight

Montell Jordan, Joerg Evers,
Juergen Korduletsch, Sergio
Moore, Darren Benbow,
Antoine Wilson, Brian Palmer

Ensign Music Corp.

I Hope You Dance

Tia Sillers, Mark D. Sanders

Ensign Music Corp.

I Don’t Want To Wait

Paula Cole

Ensign Music Corp.

Can1Get A...

Irving Lorenzo, Rob Mays,
Shawn Carter, Jeffrey Atkins

Ensign Music Corp.

One Sweet Day

Michael McCary, Nathan
Morrts, Wanya Morris, Shawn
Stockman, Mariah Carey and
Walter Afanasieff
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Exhibit C — Copyrighted Musical Compositions

Ensign Music Corp.

The Boy Is Mine

Fred Jerkins III, Rodney
Jerkins, LaShawn Daniels,
Japhe Tejada, Brandy
Norwood

Ensign Music Corp.

Call Me

Giorgio Moroder, Deborah
Harry

Ensign Music Corp.

Holla Holla

Irving Lorenzo, Jeffrey Atkins,
Taiwan Green

Bruin Music Corp.

Mission Impossible — Theme

Lalo Schifrin
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Copyright 2002 Cox Enterprises, Inc.
Cox News Service
May 6, 2002 Monday
SECTION: Lifestyle
LENGTH: 386 words
HEADLINE: Audiogalaxy.com has a world of music
DATELINE: ATLANTA

BODY:

The folks at www.yil.com _ Yahoo's magazine _ recently rated the top sites for downloading music for
free. lis top vote went to audiogalaxy.com. ‘

There's plenty of variety. We did a search for TLC and got more than 2,500 hits. A search for Lisa Lopes,
the TLC member who died last month in a car wreck in Central America, came up with nearly 300 hits,
Search for LII' Kim, our choice to replace Lopes on TLC, and you'll get more than 2,250 replies. If you wrongly
input Little Kim, you still get a couple of hundred.

Yahoo says it might take a while to get used to the quirky software.
EarthLink top dial-up 3rd year running

For the third straight year, EarthLink {www.earthlink.net) has won top honors in CNet's annual review of
major dial-up Internet service providers.,

CNet (www.cnef.com) noted that Aflanta-based EarthLink "doesn't pester you with ads."

The company also scored points for protecting the privacy of its subscribers. it was the only provider with
the courage to turn back publicly the federal government's attempt to install its Carnivore e-mail monitoring
system, one of the |atest attempts by Big Brother to quietly nose into the private lives of citizens.

Earthlink got the nod over America Online, AT&T WorldNet, MSN and CompuServe.,

Tip of the week

Don't mark the e-mail you're sending as urgent unless you're letting the recipient know someone died or
something. {Hopefully, you're calling the person if it is that dire of a situation.) Like many of you, we get e-
mails with that exclamation point popped on there. Man, do we hate that thing. Have the contents ever been
truly pressing? Not in any of the e-mails we've received like the ones we often get from public relations firms.
We had cone guy repeatedly send us urgent e-mails about an upcoming awards ceremony. Our suggestion:
Treat it like spam. If someone sends you an e-mail with that exclamation point, read it last or not at all ...
unless it comes from your boss or your mom.

Quote of the week

"Within two years we'll look back on this dial-up period with the same nostalgia we felt about the old days
of picking up the phone and asking Mary the operator to connect you.”

_ C. MICHAEL ARMSTRONG, chairman and CEC of AT&T, con the move to broadband
Compiled by the staff of The Atlanta Journal-Constitution.

LOAD-DATE: May 7, 2002
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Copyright 2002 Oklahoma Daiiy via U-Wire
University Wire
April 2, 2002, Tuesday
SECTION: COLUMN
LENGTH: 380 words
HEADLINE: Let the stealing continue!
BYLINE: By Hilton Price, Oklahoma Daily
SOURCE: U. Oklahoma
DATELINE: Norman, OkKla.

BODY:

In the months that have passed since the shutdown of the Napster online file-sharing service, it has
grown increasingly difficult to steal music over the Internet.

For those looking to fill the void left by Napster, check out www.audiogalaxy.com. The Audiogalaxy
service is a music-only file sharing service, which requires two programs to be running at once.

One program is the search engine. It uses a simple search box, and allows users to either find a specific
file size, or simply download the most popular selection.

Downloading is handled by the Audicgalaxy Satellite, a program which must be downloaded and installed
before any file downloads can take place.

Although Audiogalaxy is perfect for those in search of strictly music, other services raise the online
search bar just a little higher. Morpheus and Kazaa are two of the best. First, it's important to note that
Morpheus and Kazaa, although extremely useful for music searches, can find so much more than that.

Not only can viewers find new music from Tommy Lee, but they can also download cover art, tour
pictures, music videos, software to remix the song and even the dirty movies of Tommy with former wife
Pamela Anderson.

Morpheus' ability to find a large amount of content from all categories can be its biggest hindrance. After
all, anyone searching simply for a handful of MP3s will be forced to search through lists of videos, pictures,
and software as well.

Enter Kazaa. Although this program also hosts tons of content from a variety of categories, its search
system makes it easier to dictate what type of content is being looked for.

Of course, this is a good point to mention some legal and ethical issues. First, stealing is wrong.
Musicians need money too, so stealing music off the Internet is doing our favorite music-makers a disservice.

Likewise, although computer software is available through these services, in most cases loading this
software onto your computer is illegal.

However, once all these legal and ethical issues have been reviewed, the many file-sharing programs on
the Internet make for a fine way to waste some time, or simply find out if Tommy Lee sounds as good without
the rest of Motley Crue. Happy hunting!

(C) 2002 Oklahoma Daily via U-WIRE
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Message board: Frequently_Asked Questions

05/19/02
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05/19/02

05/18/02

05/20/02

Bf ce4gnod - Rip & whole cd

anyone know how to fip an entire cd as one file? I'm using MM Jukebox and haven't figured it

out yet...it does a good job on the

:p_g_jgg - re; Rip a whole cd

individual songs. tks

just say all and it should record the whole CD

Mllbueford21 - re: Rip a whole cd
I tried MM Jukebox and it didn't work. You can do it quite easily with Audiograbber. When the
tracks come up in the program, left click on the last track and get a Properties box. Note the
figure in the Last Sector box. Left click on the first track and get the same Properties box,
insert the Last Sector figure from the last track into the first track's last sector box. Uncheck

the other tracks and rename the first track somethin

the entire CD as one file.

& pirre - re: Rip a whole cd

g like Entire CD, etc. Hit Grab. You will get

It works in MM as well....put (in recording settings) the recording mode to ahalog and the

option automatic detect gap's to of....but you are gaing to loose quality..:(

MEodannbriang - re: Rip a whole

cd

use cdex and select rip partial file ( third icon on the right ) it will do the whole ¢d in ane file

with one click

B8frecdg00d - re: Rip a whole cd

cool... Il have to download those other programs and play around with them! thanks for the

helpt

Wiy culte - re: Rip a whole cd
I've used MM and managed to rip

help? Have tried everything | can think off In

Wrecag00d - re: Rip a whole od

CD but can't get it into my shared directory, Can anyone

cluding restarting my satellite.

hey, just to iet you guys know...| downlaaded ¢dex and ripped a whole cd...first time i did it, i
didn't check the settings and created a 500+ meg wave file...only have 256 meg ram, so it

freaked out my systemn.. lol. Re-did

slaw. tock about 40 min. Anyway,

case anyones's interested) chow!

http:/’www.audiogalaxy.com/pages/thread. php?&t=20762695

05722702

WED 11:52

it in mp3 and it worked beautifully...although | thought a bit
I'm happy - tks, everyone! (btw,
McCariney's Flaming Pie and I'll leave it in my shared folder u

the cd i ripped is Paul
nder mocariney for a while in

05/21/2002
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05/20/02 MBpjyeford21 - re: Rip a whole cd
Conversely, If you downioad an entire CD as one track, you can use Nero Burn fo create
individual tracks. You drag and drop the track, right click to get audio track info, and hit the
index, limit, spiit tab and an osc:lloscope appears. You can use this to shorten or-lengthen the
size of a track. It takes a while but is worth it if you like to get the individual songs for
randomizing.

05/20/02 WMifree4good - re: Rip a whole cd

hey, very cool, blueford,.l have nere burn, {00...it came with my cd bumar although with no
documentation. | will give it a shot ksl

05/20/02 WRBblueford2} - re: Rip a whole cd

Freedgood: | forgot to mention that you need to drag and drop the “whaole" file for each track
created. Go to Freedb.org to get the times of the individual tracks.

Log in Before Posting _
You must be logged-in before you can post a message to this thread.
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Message board: I'm looking for ...

05/13/02 IEDurrson - Prince / Symbol / The Artist / T.AF
I'm tooking for the track "Beautiful® by the above arlist. Not to be confused with "The Most
Beautiful Girl tn The World". The song Beautiful comes from the 1994 Bellmark EP "The
Beautiful Experiance” ~*~ Thanks far any help you can offer...

05/14/02 Mpurmson - re: Prince / Symbol / The Artist

T-SHIRTS

[~RmpTo— WGl  member ogin [

Ok, cancel the above. I've managed to get this with the help of a friend. Can anyone help me
find the aibum "COME" by Prince? It's one of those diffacult ones to find on AG... Thanks in

advance?,

05/15/02 EEBDurrsan - re: Prince / Symbol / The Artist
Anyocne? :

052102 WBDurrsen - re: Prince 7/ Symbel / The Artist
Yet another bump, this is my last one now..
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